
          

 

 

ISLANDS AT DORAL (NE) 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 6, 2021 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 

www.islandsatdoralnecdd.org 
786.347.2711 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 

    



AGENDA 
ISLANDS AT DORAL (NE)  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Doral Legacy Park – 2nd Floor Conference Room 

11400 NW 82nd Street 
Doral, Florida 33178 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
October 6, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. August 4, 2021 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing……………………………………..Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2021-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Amended Budget…....Page 5 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financial Update...........................................................................................................................Page 10 

J. Board Member/Staff Comments and Requests 

K. Adjourn 



���

������	
����	
����������� ����	
������������	�������
������������ �!"��#�$%&!��'�� (�$)$�!��$� ��� "�& *��&��($�"����+����"$,'��"�$$ ��,�&-$�'�$�! �&$��-$"$.(,�)$�
/	

/�.�	�0�1��2��3������1
/����	�0�	
���	�#�$%&�44���
���3���24��
���
���
5���/��0"����	����
����	
67��2848��
/����	����	���	�9:��0*����&��1������"��4:���	
�0	
������;<�0�
���
:���	�:*����0	==�6<:��
/�1����5���0	
��7!�
����>:����*����	���:�����2���>:����?���<:���������
=:���� /�2��2����1
/�4��
������
����0��
	������������4�����1���
/�.�	�08���
����	���2��
�
/�2�����	�05��������0��
�0��	����0	���5�
/
/�2��3�������1*����0	�	58&�2����1
/�����0	�1��	���1
/�4��
����4	�����
	���01��4
/����
���
@�5����
��������
	�
���
/����
���
�	�	���	
#6<>%=�6��6��$A
8����	�0+��	
��<66�6=6�����B3�#C%0	��2����
�
/�0	
��1
/�2	�
����	�4��
���8*��4
�4�
�
�4������
5���2��3�����4	�2	�
���2	
���
���2/���D
/���1���	�2�	9��
���2/���5�����2�����
	���E����0:	

/�4��
������	
�����
/	
��2��3�����4	���1������1��4�0�1
/�0����������
	9���2�	��8�	�04��
���#�%4	������
����0	�1���0������	��
�	
�4�	�02�	���2���B�0��
/������08�1	��2�����0���0��
�	22�	�	��0�������4	0�5�
/���2��

�	��4	

�������0���0	

/���4��
����:���/2�����5������0	�����0�1
/�2�����0����	�0���/2�����4	����0
�������
/	
	3���	
�4�����0�1
/�2�����0������4	0�	
/����/���5��A2����	�05/��/�����0�����0��
/�
��
�4���	�0�3�0������5/��/
/�	22�	����	��08��	����0	���5�
/
/�2��3�������1
/��4����	��5�
/���	����
�����
:	��2�������E�������2���	�	���44�0	
������	���
��2��
��
�2	�
���2	
�	
	���1
/���4��
�����/���0���
	�

/����
���
�	�	���	
#6<>%=�6��6��$A
����	�0+��	
��<66�6=6�����	
��	�
��3��#6%0	��2����
�
/�0	
��1
/�2	�
����	�4��
���8���
����4	����	������01��4
�4�
�
�4�5�
/��
	03��
���0��
���8�������� �!"��#�$%&!��'�� (�$)$�!��$� ��� "�& 5558���	�0�0��	����008����+������=+����CC�6><�

Page 1



Page 1 of 3 
 

ISLANDS AT DORAL (NE) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
PUBLIC HEARING & REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

AUGUST 4, 2021 
 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

The August 4, 2021, Regular Board Meeting of the Islands at Doral (NE) Community Development 
District (the “District”) was called to order at 7:03 p.m. in the Second Floor Conference Room of Doral 
Legacy Park located at 11400 NW 82nd Street, Doral, Florida 33178. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in the 
Miami Daily Business Review on July 15, 2021, and July 22, 2021, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of Chairman Jesus Arias, Vice Chairman Nestor Garcia and 
Supervisor Dunia Cuneo constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the meeting.   
 
Staff in attendance included:  District Manager Gloria Perez of Special District Services, Inc.; and 
General Counsel Ginger Wald of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  May 26, 2021, Regular Board Meeting  
  
The May 26, 2021, Regular Board Meeting minutes were presented for approval. 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Garcia, seconded by Supervisor Cuneo and unanimously passed 
approving the minutes of the May 26, 2021, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
Mrs. Perez then recessed the Regular Board Meeting and opened the Public Hearing. 
 
G. PUBLIC HEARING 
 1.  Proof of Publication 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Public Hearing had been published in the Miami 
Daily Business Review on July 15, 2021, and July 22, 2021, as legally required.  
 
 2.  Receive Public Comment on the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Final Budget 
 
Mrs. Perez opened the public comment portion of the Public Hearing to receive comments on the Fiscal 
Year 2021/2022 Final Budget.  There were no comments. 

Page 2



Page 2 of 3 
 

There being no further Public Hearing business to conduct, the Public Hearing was closed and the 
Regular Board Meeting was reconvened. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution 2021-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Final Budget 
 
Mrs. Perez presented Resolution No. 2021-04, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ISLANDS AT DORAL (NE) COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ADOPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 BUDGET.  
 

Mrs. Perez read the title of the resolution into the record and stated that it provides for approving and 
adopting the fiscal year 2020/2021 Final Budget and the non-ad valorem special assessment. 
 
A MOTION was made by Supervisor Cuneo, seconded by Supervisor Garcia and unanimously passed 
to adopt Resolution No. 2021-04, approving the Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Final Budget, as presented and 
setting the fiscal year 2021/2022 Final Budget and non-ad valorem special assessment tax roll 
(Assessment Levy). 
 
H. OLD BUSINESS 
 
There were no Old Business items to come before the Board. 
 
I. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2021-05 Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Meeting Schedule 
 
Mrs. Perez presented Resolution No. 2021-05, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-05 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE ISLANDS AT 
DORAL (NE) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING 
A REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021/2022 AND 
SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
October 6, 2021 Amended Budget 

February 2, 2022 
April 6, 2022 Proposed Budget 
June 8, 2022* Final Budget PH 

August 3, 2022 
 

*Change of 1st Wednesday of the Month to accommodate the Final Budget PH 60 day requirement 
 
 

A MOTION was made by Supervisor Garcia, seconded by Supervisor Arias and unanimously passed to 
adopt Resolution No. 2021-05, approving the Regular Meeting Schedule for Fiscal Year 2021-2022, 
holding meetings in Doral Legacy Park, 2nd Floor Conference Room, located at 11400 NW 82nd Street, 
Doral, Florida 33178, with the start time of 7:00 p.m. and further authorizes the advertisement of same, 
as required by law. 
 
 2.  Accept and Receive Alvarez Engineering 2021 Annual Engineer’s Report 

Page 3



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
 

A MOTION was made by Supervisor Garcia, seconded by Supervisor Arias and unanimously passed 
accepting and receiving the Alvarez Engineering 2021 Annual Engineer’s Report, as presented. 
 
 3.  Legal Update Memo 
 
Ms. Wald provided an overview of the legal update memorandum that was presented in the meeting 
book. 
 
J.  ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 1.  Financial Update 
 
Mrs. Perez presented the financials in the meeting book and briefly reviewed them.  She pointed out that 
the available fund as of June 30, 2021, were $98,115.51. 

 
K. BOARD MEMBER/STAFF COMMENTS 
  
Mrs. Perez added that pursuant to the Public Ethics State of Florida website; 
http://public.ethics.state.fl.us/search.cfm all of the Board Members had submitted the required Form 1 in a 
timely manner with the exception of Nestor Garcia, who as of today does not appear to have fulfilled the 
filing requirements.  She noted that he had been notified. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a MOTION was made by Supervisor Arias, 
seconded by Supervisor Garcia and passed unanimously adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at 7:15 
p.m.   
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________  __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman/Vice-Chair 

Page 4



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
ISLANDS AT DORAL (NE) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED 
FINAL FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 BUDGET (“AMENDED 
BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 189, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Islands at Doral (NE) Community 
Development District (“District”) is empowered to provide a funding source and to impose 
special assessments upon the properties within the District; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the District has prepared for consideration and approval an Amended 
Budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE ISLANDS AT DORAL (NE) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 
THAT: 
  

                  Section 1. The Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted. 

 
 Section 2. The Secretary/Assistant Secretary of the District is authorized to execute 

any and all necessary transmittals, certifications or other acknowledgements or writings, as 
necessary, to comply with the intent of this Resolution. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 6th day of October, 2021. 
 

 

ATTEST: ISLANDS AT DORAL (NE) 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 
 

Page 5



  Islands At Doral (NE)
Community Development District

Amended Budget For
Fiscal Year 2020/2021

October 1, 2020 - September 30, 2021

Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



  Islands At Doral (NE)
Community Development District

  Financial Report For
September 2021

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13


	Islands at Doral (NE) Community Development District - October 6, 2021 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	August 4, 2021 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2021-06 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2020/2021 Amended Budget
	Financial Update




